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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Good afternoon. The

          3  meeting on Civil Service and Labor is officially in

          4  session. Can I ask, please, that any witnesses that

          5  wish to speak, please sign in, we need these sign-in

          6  sheets for our speakers.

          7                 I will start by introducing myself. I

          8  am Councilwoman Lucy Cruz, Chair of the Civil

          9  Service and Labor Committee, and I would like to

         10  have my Council Members introduce themselves,

         11  starting on my immediate left.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Pedro Espada,

         13  17th, Bronx.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am going to start

         15  by introducing the Council Member that just came in.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I am Council

         17  Member Lasher, a member of the Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We have been joined

         19  by another Council Member. Please introduce

         20  yourself.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Council Member

         22  Margarita Lopez, member of the Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: And to my right is

         24  legislative staff to the Committee on Civil Service.

         25                 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon. My name is
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          2  Carl Smith, I am Legal Counsel to the Committee on

          3  Civil Service and Labor.

          4                 MR. ARBELLO: Good afternoon. Rick

          5  Arbello. I am the Legislative Policy Analyst to the

          6  Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Frank Neely used to

          8  sit there. We miss him very much. Very much, Rick.

          9  But we welcome you, Rick.

         10                 I will introduce another Council

         11  Member that has joined us. Council Member Larry

         12  Warden, from the Bronx, the mainland.

         13                 Good afternoon, and welcome. Today

         14  the Committee on Civil Service and Labor will

         15  receive testimony from Local 100 of the Transport

         16  Workers Union, TWU, in relation to the examination

         17  for train operator.

         18                 For the record, we did invite

         19  representatives from the MTA, Metropolitan Transit

         20  Authority, the New York City Transit, via telephone

         21  through the Mayor's Office of Intergovernmental

         22  Affairs.

         23                 The Committee received notification

         24  that the MTA would not participate in this hearing

         25  due to the ongoing strike negotiations, which are
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          2  currently taking place between the MTA and Local

          3  100.

          4                 May I also introduce two other

          5  members that have joined us. Karen Koslowitz,

          6  Council Member, and Christine Quinn.

          7                 Okay, the purpose of this hearing is

          8  to explore in detail why the MTA decided to make the

          9  exam for train operator, which historically has been

         10  a promotional exam into an open and competitive

         11  exam.

         12                 The next exam for train operator is

         13  scheduled for January 8th, and will be open to

         14  members of the general public that meet the criteria

         15  set out in the notice of examination, proclamated by

         16  the Department of Citywide Administrative Services.

         17                 Recently an article which appeared in

         18  the New York Times sited statistics which indicated

         19  a high failure rate for a recent prior exam which

         20  appeared to support the MTA's contention that not

         21  enough employees in the promotional ranks were

         22  qualified to be a train operator.

         23                 In a subsequent exam the pass rate

         24  improved dramatically. Upon discussing the issue

         25  with Local 100, the Committee learned that the
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          2  reason for the disparity in the pass rate was

          3  because preparatory materials were available and

          4  distributed to the candidates on the most recent

          5  exams, whereas the very same materials were not

          6  available for any of the previous or prior exams.

          7                 For the record, it must be stated

          8  that this Committee and the City Council as a whole

          9  does not have the authority to change the policy in

         10  relation to classification of the train operators'

         11  exam.

         12                 This issue is defined by labor law as

         13  a management prerogative and as such is not a

         14  mandatory subject of collective bargaining.

         15                 Moreover, the Council is precluded

         16  from entering into collective negotiation by its

         17  standing as the legislative body of the City of New

         18  York.

         19                 The Council, however, by holding this

         20  public hearing, seeks to shed light on this issue

         21  and raise public awareness.

         22                 Our first speaker will be Corine

         23  Scott-Mack from TWU, Local 100. I see we have some

         24  other friends who have joined. Please state your

         25  name for the record. Please.
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          2                 Ms. Scott.

          3                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Good afternoon.

          4  Corine Scott-Mack.

          5                 MR. BORISH: Richie Borish, TWU.

          6                 MR. BROWN: Ron Brown, TWU.

          7                 MR. MONTELBANO: Vincent Montelbano,

          8  Government Relations, Transport Workers Union, Local

          9  100.

         10                 MR. WHEELER: Thomas Wheeler, TWU.

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: If I may, prior to

         12  giving my testimony I would like to state that as a

         13  Vice President of Local 100 I, too, am part of the

         14  negotiation process in this contract negotiations,

         15  and I am disappointed that the Transit Authority is

         16  not here for this hearing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Duly noted.

         18                 Would you please adjust your mike so

         19  you are talking right into it? Thank you.

         20                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Thank you.

         21                 My name is Corine Scott-Mack. I am

         22  here today to represent the hard-working members of

         23  TWU, Local 100. We are united in our opposition to

         24  the New York City Transit Authority's proposal to

         25  open the train operator exam to applicants with no
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          2  experience in the City's Transit system.

          3                 The proposal is based on an assertion

          4  that not enough of our members are qualified to

          5  become train operators. That assertion is based on

          6  faulty logic drawn from the results of a deceptive

          7  behavior by the TA.

          8                 I come before you today to show two

          9  things. First, that the plan to change the train

         10  operator position from promotional to open

         11  competitive, entry level position, will bring

         12  inexperienced applicants with disastrous

         13  consequences to the safety of the riding public; and

         14  second, that the New York City Transit Authority

         15  stacked the cards against union members, in order to

         16  create a rationale for one-person train operation, a

         17  system that TWU, Local 100, steadfastly opposes.

         18                 There are dire safety implications.

         19  The New York City subway system is among the safest

         20  in the world. It carries 4 million riders safely to

         21  and from destinations each day.

         22                 Our employees and our members have

         23  knowledge of the entire system, including rail

         24  safety and evacuation procedures.

         25                 Currently, employees must have at
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          2  least one year of experience in an eligible title

          3  before applying for promotion to train operator.

          4  That experience is irreplaceable.

          5                 Hiring candidates who have no

          6  exposure to the system, training them for 90 days

          7  and allowing them to operate tons of equipment with

          8  thousands of passengers aboard is an invitation to

          9  disaster.

         10                 The safety of the riding public must

         11  not be compromised. You should know that the history

         12  of this issue is not as simple as Transit Authority

         13  proclaims.

         14                 For the 1999 Train Operator

         15  Promotional Exam, the Transit Authority discontinued

         16  the long-held practice of conducting preparatory

         17  classes for employee applicants. It contended that

         18  it had a shortage of instructors. The Transport

         19  Workers Union, Local 100, offered to give the

         20  classes if the TA provided study materials. The TA

         21  did not provide curriculum material, but according

         22  to civil service guidelines, gave all applicants

         23  study guides and assured us that the material was

         24  relevant to the test. Two Veteran Train

         25  Operation/Union Organizers gave a class based on the
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          2  material in the study guide to several hundred

          3  employees and 90 percent passed the sample final

          4  exam that TWU instructors gave them.

          5                 Unfortunately, only a minute portion

          6  of the actual exam reflected the study materials

          7  that Transit Authority gave out members. As has been

          8  well publicized, many of our members did not pass.

          9                 Why would the TA decline to give

         10  classes to our members, give them incomplete study

         11  materials and then to say they do not have enough

         12  qualified applicants? To understand why, you must

         13  understand the history of a critical dispute TWU has

         14  had with the TA.

         15                 SINCE 1994, the TA has been pushing

         16  to institute One Person Train Operation, which the

         17  Union and Transit Advocacy groups have long opposed

         18  for safety reasons. Because of pressure against the

         19  initiative, the TA backed off. In September 1998,

         20  the TA asked the Union to agree to broadband, or

         21  combine, the Train Operator and Conductor position.

         22  The Union refused. If the Train Operator and

         23  Conductor positions were combined into one position,

         24  it would make it easier for the TA to justify One

         25  Person Train Operation.
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          2                 Now I will explain our view of

          3  Transit Authority's reasoning behind the sabotage of

          4  our members taking the train operator exam. The

          5  train operator exam is a promotional exam, that is,

          6  it can only be taken by employees who have been with

          7  the TA for at least one year and are familiar with

          8  the New York City Transit system. The conductor

          9  position is an open competitive position, which

         10  means that any member of the public can apply. If

         11  the TA can make the train operator exam open

         12  competitive, it will be easier to justify

         13  broadbanding the titles, and therefore to justify

         14  instituting One Person Train Operation.

         15                 It seems clear to me that the TA is

         16  willing to put the safety of the riding public on

         17  the line by hiring inexperienced train operators in

         18  order to achieve its goal of one-person train

         19  operation, which itself is the potentially unsafe

         20  operation.

         21                 With these issues in mind, I hope you

         22  come to the conclusion, as TWU Local 100 has, that

         23  it is a poor policy choice to make the position of

         24  Train Operator Open Competitive. I respectfully ask

         25  that the esteemed members of the City Council do

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  everything in their power to prevent Open

          3  Competitive for the position of Train Operator.

          4                 Thank you for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Is there anyone

          6  else that would like to speak from TWU?

          7                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Who I have present

          8  are the train operators who actually compiled the

          9  data and gave the test to the train operators who

         10  were taking the exam, in which only 33 passed.

         11                 To my far left we have Mr. Wheeler,

         12  who is a staff organizer, who has 24 years as a

         13  train operator and gave the test.

         14                 Mr. Wheeler.

         15                 MR. WHEELER: Good afternoon, ladies

         16  and gentlemen. My name is Tom Wheeler. I am an

         17  organizer for art for the New York City Transit

         18  Authority under Local 100.

         19                 This examination, I was asked to

         20  prepare what material that we could to try to

         21  prepare the employees for this exam.

         22                 Mr. Brown and myself, we gathered up

         23  old examinations, we took the rule book so forth and

         24  so on and we prepared the material that we felt and

         25  that we were told would possibly be on that exam.
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          2                 The Transit Authority gave us very,

          3  very little in the way of preparatory material. We

          4  were told that they were shorthanded and they had no

          5  instructors available and therefore what they had

          6  intended to do was to charge the employee $45 to

          7  take the exam, they were giving them a booklet and

          8  that was it.

          9                 Now, for the 24 years, 25 years that

         10  I have been here, any exam that the Transit

         11  Authority has put out, they have always given

         12  preparatory classes. I was told that there was no

         13  material that could be made available to me.

         14                 So, as I said, Mr. Brown and I put

         15  together what we figured would be there.

         16                 I also sat on the board, who answered

         17  the challengers to the exam, and the material that

         18  was used to write the exam, and the gentleman who

         19  wrote the exam, I spoke with him and the booklets

         20  that were used to formulate the questions, those

         21  booklets were not issued, or have not been issued to

         22  our employees in over 20 years. So, again, I don't

         23  understand how you can take a book that has been out

         24  of practice or out of use for 20 some odd years,

         25  prepare a test from that and expect people to pass.
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          2  It is not fair, it should be illegal.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: For the record, we

          4  have been joined by Council Member Angel Rodriguez,

          5  from Brooklyn.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon. Again, my

          8  name is Ron Brown, and I am an organizer for Local

          9  100. I am one of the people who gave the

         10  examinations to the employees.

         11                 Another part of this diagram that we

         12  are trying to draw for you is, the Transit Authority

         13  approached us in September of 1998 and asked the

         14  union if we would give them permission to change the

         15  title of train operator and conductor to Worker One

         16  and Worker Two.

         17                 They wanted to basically broadband

         18  the title. They approached us again in March of

         19  1999, again wanting to change the title of the train

         20  operator. Again we declined. They approached us

         21  again in July, and again in September Ms. Mack was

         22  out ill. She is the Vice President of RTO.

         23                 At the end of October they approached

         24  us again, Ms. Mack was back from being ill, and they

         25  bought this document to us and explained to us how
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          2  they would go about changing this title, and what it

          3  would mean for our membership if we would do it.

          4                 When we read what they proposed, we

          5  saw that it was just another way of broadbanding to

          6  eliminate some of the workers, to have a one-person

          7  operation. We turned it down.

          8                 Before we turned it down they said to

          9  us that if we agreed to this document, that they

         10  would not have the open, competitive examination.

         11  So, you see, this shows that they actually wanted to

         12  broadband the title. They is all they want to do.

         13  And if you want, I can give you copies of this

         14  document.

         15                 Thank you for your time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Would you like to

         17  add anything? Please.

         18                 MR. BORISH: Richie Borish. I am also

         19  an organizer for RTO and a train operator for 18

         20  years, and head of the TWU Committee to stop

         21  one-person train operation.

         22                 The Transit Authority, from documents

         23  that we have seen, has a long-range plan to

         24  eventually make one person train operation the

         25  status quo in the Transit Authority.
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          2                 We have several grievances that we

          3  are bringing before the contract arbitrator, and

          4  also documents that we have submitted to the State

          5  Assembly and State Senate showing that even in its

          6  current condensed form, one-person train operation

          7  is an unsafe operation for a variety of reasons. I

          8  don't know if the members recall, just recently,

          9  probably earlier this year, there was a young woman

         10  raped on a G Train, okay? No one in the press

         11  brought out the fact that that was a one-person

         12  train operation. There was no conductor in the

         13  position where he could have contacted the police to

         14  apprehend this suspect. He wasn't there because

         15  there was only one person on that train up front.

         16                 Several years ago we had a priest

         17  slashed out in the Rockaways, if you recall that

         18  story? That was on a one-person train operation

         19  train. Slashed in the car where a conductor would

         20  have been.

         21                 Several weeks later, or several days

         22  later, there was someone, a florist, actually

         23  stabbed and killed, again, on a one-person train

         24  operation. And the union stands firm in its belief

         25  that this operation is unsafe, and we believe that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  this exam and the events leading up to it, is an

          3  attempt by them to institute one-person train

          4  operation citywide. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Mr. Montelbano,

          6  would you like to add anything?

          7                 I am certainly going to say that I am

          8  the aunt of a train operator. It is very personal to

          9  me because this is very scary, the thought that all

         10  of these horrific acts have been undertaken with a

         11  one-person train, the broadbanding is frightening,

         12  we face a very scary situation to say the least, and

         13  as someone had said to me, that means that anybody

         14  flipping hamburgers could qualify and drive the

         15  train and we are putting the lives of so many people

         16  at risk. It certainly raises a lot of flags in my

         17  head.

         18                 First of all, I would like to ask,

         19  how many train operators are currently employed by

         20  Transit? How many?

         21                 MR. BORISH: We have over 3,700 train

         22  operators in RTO.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Could you tell me,

         24  of that 3,700, how many of them are minority?

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: In RTO it is
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          2  approximately 80 percent people of color,

          3  African-American and Latino.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Eighty percent of

          5  train operators -- let me say this again, because I

          6  want to make sure that everybody hears this, 80

          7  percent of train operators are minorities?

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Could there

         10  possibly, if we start broadbanding, is that going to

         11  cause elimination of a lot of -- we have questions

         12  and we need answers, and I think that this Committee

         13  and the general public would have a better idea of

         14  exactly what we are talking about.

         15                 Is that going to create -- come on,

         16  Ms. Mack.

         17                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: I think it goes

         18  further than that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         20                 MS. SCOTT-MACK:  If I may be blunt,

         21  the issue of open competitive is the issue which

         22  goes to the racial issue. The fact is, if you go

         23  outside of the Transit Authority offices, because in

         24  the system, as a whole, in the Transit Authority,

         25  the numbers that were given to us by the Transit
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          2  Authority is that systemwide, including management

          3  and supervision, there is 47 percent

          4  African-Americans, there is 11 percent Latino, there

          5  is seven percent of other people of color and the

          6  rest is white.

          7                 So, looking at the whole make up of

          8  the Transit Authority, people of color are the

          9  minority, that is including management. And on the

         10  other side of the scope, in terms of management, it

         11  is more like 95 percent white male, versus a

         12  membership, which is a majority of people of color.

         13                 And looking at trying to implement

         14  open competitive train operator, what you doing is

         15  saying that we are going to change the criteria of

         16  how we hire folks now in 1999, very different from

         17  the last 60 years, where whomever had the ability to

         18  do the job, did the job after being a conductor

         19  first, or a station cleaner first. We will train

         20  you, at least you had some experience.

         21                 We felt very offended that you would

         22  now say that we, who have built this system,

         23  operated the system safely, are not able to be train

         24  operators. That is the key.

         25                 Why is it now that the system who had
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          2  people of color, the majority are people of color

          3  unable to be train operators.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: The people that

          5  have come through are what we always call rank and

          6  file, aren't they?

          7                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: And these are the

          9  people that come up from porters to maintenance to

         10  everything, and yes, they are watching, knowing,

         11  they have full knowledge of the system, although it

         12  acquires them years, and that is how they move into

         13  higher positions; is that correct?

         14                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         16                 I find it, although not impossible to

         17  believe, I find it offensive that we could not in

         18  all the years that we have been given train operator

         19  tests and doing promotional exams, that Transit

         20  Authority, MTA, could not come up with materials to

         21  adequately prepare candidates, okay?

         22                 So, I find that very, very dubious,

         23  and I want to say that.

         24                 There is another question. Have the

         25  MTA's policies concerning disciplining and demoting
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          2  train operators for minor violations, discouraged

          3  well-qualified, trained Transit Authority employees

          4  from taking the exam?

          5                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Could you highlight

          7  and explain that for us?

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: In the system we have

          9  two titles which has the highest rate of discipline.

         10  RTO, which is the Department that I am from, and has

         11  train operators, conductors, we have the second

         12  highest level of discipline. The first highest level

         13  of discipline is the Station Department where

         14  cleaners are and token booth clerks are, and in

         15  those two departments we have the greatest number of

         16  people of color working in those departments.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I know my

         18  colleagues have a lot of questions.

         19                 Larry. We will start with Council

         20  Member Warden.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 I just want to ask you a series of

         24  questions, some of them are definitions so that the

         25  public will understand what we mean by certain
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          2  terms. So, can someone please define broadbanding?

          3                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes. Broadbanding is

          4  when they would take one title and incorporate all

          5  of the responsibilities into that one title.

          6                 As it stands now a train operator

          7  operates the train. That is the train operator's

          8  responsibility. The conductor opens and closes

          9  doors, and basically ensures some kind of safety for

         10  the customers between the fourth, fifth or sixth

         11  car. In broadbanding the train operator will try to

         12  do both. Today it will be a train operator, tomorrow

         13  it will be a conductor.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Now, presently your conductor and

         17  your station cleaner, they are open competitive;

         18  correct?

         19                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay.

         21                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Excuse me, I am

         22  sorry. The conductor title is an open competitive

         23  title. That means a cleaner or other titles could

         24  apply for conductor, but also the riding public

         25  could also apply for conductor.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: The train

          3  operator is presently a promotional.

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Now, let me

          6  ask you something. Someone who is going to be

          7  appointed to the train operator from a conductor's

          8  list, how much training does that individual get

          9  before they give him the stick and let him ride the

         10  railroad?

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Currently the person

         12  will get 90 days or as much as 125 I believe,

         13  depending on whether they are in the A division,

         14  which is the number lines, or the B division, which

         15  are the letter lines.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: What is the

         17  difference? It is all rail.

         18                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Well, the B division

         19  is a larger area, and incorporates a larger area on

         20  the additional days of training. So, keep in mind

         21  that a conductor already has experience on a train.

         22  They have knowledge of a train, they are more

         23  comfortable with the train, so therefore being a

         24  train operator, it is just the next move. You worked

         25  in the middle of the train and now you want to move
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          2  to the front of the train. You have a sense of peace

          3  with yourself in operating a massive amount of

          4  equipment and a large responsibility with thousands

          5  of people who ride that train every day with you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Now, under the

          7  proposal, anybody can take the test. I can take the

          8  test.

          9                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay? And I

         11  don't know Jack about running a train.

         12                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: You got it. In 90

         13  days.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Would you like

         15  to say something?

         16                 MR. WHEELER: The Transit Authority

         17  has set upon a system whereby I have been a train

         18  operator for 20 years, and the Transit Authority is

         19  now saying that they can take anyone, the gentleman

         20  you referred to as flipping hamburgers, and in 90

         21  days they can make him as good an operator as I am.

         22  I resent that. I resent that very much, and I want

         23  to sit here and tell each and every member of this

         24  panel that that is impossible. You cannot make a

         25  train operator in 90 days. You can have someone who
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          2  can possibly move a train along the tracks, but he

          3  is not a train operator. They changed the title to

          4  train operator from motorman, is what we were called

          5  when I first took the exam. And at that time I took

          6  the test and I was in the yard for a year operating

          7  trains without passing it.

          8                 Why was I required to stay in the

          9  yard for a year, before I was entrusted with the

         10  train that you could ride, now they will entrust a

         11  person with that same train in 90 days, full of

         12  passengers, and I am here to tell you that that

         13  individual can operate the train, yes, Ma'am, yes,

         14  sir, he can, he can operate it, but he is not a

         15  train operator.

         16                 There are things that I know and

         17  things that I can do in an emergency situation that

         18  that man or that woman is not even taught.

         19                 MR. BROWN: The Transit Authority has

         20  something called a simulator, and what it is doing

         21  or what it is going to do is, it is going to reduce

         22  the training time, so if they are getting 100 days

         23  and 75 days in one division, they are going to

         24  reduce it to maybe 30 days.

         25                 Now, here is the common sense
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          2  question or answer. If the members of the TWU, Local

          3  100, couldn't pass the test, and they are going to

          4  give an open competitive test, they won't be able to

          5  ask the same questions, because someone coming from

          6  flipping a hamburger or such, wouldn't have any

          7  knowledge of a train. So, they are going to give an

          8  examination to someone, not based on what they know

          9  about trains, but based on whatever their test is

         10  going to be based on- reading comprehension or

         11  whatever.

         12                 So, my question is this: If race

         13  plays no part in this, then why don't they just --

         14  why didn't they just give that examination to the

         15  people that were already in TWU, since they claim

         16  that they can make someone a train operator just by

         17  training them. So it shows there that something is

         18  amiss here.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Madam

         20  Chairwoman, you asked a question that I was going to

         21  ask you, because one of the problems that we have

         22  been having with the development of the Civil

         23  Service examinations is to make sure that the

         24  examinations are relevant to the position that we

         25  are being tested for and there has been all sorts of
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          2  hue and cries about racial implications and cultural

          3  implications as it relates to some of the other

          4  open, competitive examinations that are around, and

          5  I know they have adjusted the exam for the Police

          6  Department and the Fire Department and other titles

          7  where you can go in as an open competitive

          8  applicant.

          9                 When it comes to the train, I have a

         10  problem. I consider myself reasonably bright. I do

         11  very well on standardized tests, but if you were to

         12  ask me what do you call the gadget that moves the

         13  train, I couldn't tell you. I wouldn't know. And I

         14  am coming from the outside as an open, competitive

         15  applicant.

         16                 So, I see there is a great deal of

         17  problems in this area, Madam Chairman, that we have

         18  to look at very carefully because lives are at

         19  stake, public safety is at stake, the equipment that

         20  they always come to us to purchase is at stake, as

         21  well as, you know, the careers of many men and women

         22  of this City.

         23                 So, we have to look at this very

         24  carefully, very cautiously, to ensure that there is

         25  a level of fairness.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I have some more

          4  questions, but I have to ask, have MTA given you a

          5  rationale for --

          6                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: None?

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: None.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: MTA has not come to

         10  leadership, the chapter leader, stewardesses, vice

         11  president, president TWU and said, the reason why we

         12  are going to open up the bid versus promotional

         13  exams is this?

         14                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The reason we were

         15  given was the exact reason you have seen in the

         16  paper, which is they couldn't find viable candidates

         17  within, therefore they are going outside.

         18                 Keep in mind, at one point they

         19  wanted to have a criteria of college background in

         20  order to be a train operator, which would say that

         21  Mr. Wheeler who has done 20 years of service as a

         22  train operator and four years as a conductor, who

         23  does not have college background, didn't do a good

         24  job.

         25                 A man who has an excellent discipline
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          2  record, who has an excellent operation record, that

          3  shows you that Transit Authority obviously is using

          4  some, you know, pie-in-the-sky kind of attitude

          5  around this issue. It goes back to the fact, the

          6  fact is they want to have broadbanding, they want to

          7  have total control over the broadbanding issue,

          8  therefore they use open competitive train operator

          9  to get that done.

         10                 MR. BORISH: If I may? You know, I

         11  have been doing this for about 20 years since I

         12  started at DC 37 in 1979, and when my colleagues

         13  brought this to my attention awhile back when the

         14  publicity started, I felt like it was the old days.

         15  It is clear, the reason that you ask about, is a

         16  reason that the TA created. They created a situation

         17  where they sabotaged the exam process so people

         18  would fail so they could say we don't have a pool

         19  and we don't have a qualified group, therefore we

         20  must go out.

         21                 It is very clear that they want to do

         22  the broadbanding. What they are doing, and, look,

         23  you have to give them credit for being smart about

         24  it, they are establishing a rationale because they

         25  can't get it from the union, to go to the Civil
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          2  Service Commission, which is where they would go

          3  next, and ask for the broadbanded title. They are

          4  creating a rationale.

          5                 And they can't be allowed to do that,

          6  because I ride the trains all the time, and this

          7  idea of one-person train operation is bizarre, I

          8  can't figure that out at all.

          9                 But I think there is one other thing

         10  we have kind of skirted around but that is important

         11  as well; and that is, the TA management frequently

         12  does not act in a very enlightening fashion. Every

         13  organization of that size with that kind of a

         14  workforce, has got to have promotional opportunities

         15  so people can feel as if they are working their way

         16  up the ladder somewhere, and the train operator is

         17  the promotional opportunity for people. To take that

         18  away is very, very foolish. It is foolish in terms

         19  of the work ethic, and the loyalty you are trying to

         20  create, and the people in the system are very loyal

         21  and they are great workers and they make that system

         22  run every day, and this is just really foolish, from

         23  a safety perspective, and from an enlightening

         24  management perspective.

         25                 MR. BROWN: Let me just add one thing
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          2  before the next question.

          3                 It was so obvious what the Transit

          4  Authority was trying to do that Mr. Wheeler, before

          5  every class that we gave to the employees, and we

          6  had almost 1,000, it was in the hundreds with the

          7  courses that we gave with the materials that we made

          8  up ourselves, because the Transit Authority told us

          9  they didn't have any materials, this is a list of

         10  people who were told before the examination that

         11  this exam was a set-up. We knew it before because of

         12  the way they approached us. All of a sudden after 28

         13  years they had no one to teach the class so we had

         14  to. We knew something was amiss. So we have these

         15  people, they are ready to come down to testify or do

         16  whatever you want them to do, they were told in

         17  advance that the Transit Authority was going to rig

         18  the test.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: That the Transit

         20  Authority was going to what?

         21                 MR. BROWN: In other words, give an

         22  examination that would be hard for them to pass.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         24                 MR. BORISH: If I can just expand on

         25  that for one second.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Please.

          3                 MR. BORISH: Just to give you an

          4  example of the test, I have been a train operator

          5  for 18 years, there was a question on there that

          6  said when a train operator operating a train passes

          7  a flagman who is someone on the roadbed, he is to

          8  proceed, and the four choices were, slowly, very

          9  slowly, very, very slowly, and very, very, very

         10  slowly. The God's honest truth.

         11                 Now, the last two are wrong because

         12  they are grammatically incorrect, you can't use a

         13  double adjective. And the first two, I, in my 18

         14  years, and Tommy in his 24 and Ron in his 15, have

         15  never even heard that expression ever in the Transit

         16  Authority when it comes to operating a train.

         17  Everything is always expressed in terms of miles per

         18  hour. The rule is ten miles an hour or less when

         19  passing someone on the roadway. You can ask any

         20  train operator in the system and they will all tell

         21  you the same thing. We never hear the term very

         22  slowly or slowly, and this is the type of question

         23  that was -- the correct answer was very slowly,

         24  where they got that from we are not sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am going to ask
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          2  Council Member Lopez.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You cannot

          4  blame me for being in disbelief here. I have great

          5  respect for all of you, but honestly, I think you

          6  are pulling a hoax on us. In all honesty. And I am

          7  serious in what I am saying.

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: We wish we were. We

          9  wish we were.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, you are

         11  saying, and let me get this very clear, that you,

         12  each one of you who drive the trains --

         13                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The four of us.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, the four

         15  of you.

         16                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The four of us are

         17  train operators.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Each one of you

         19  are saying there is no way, under no circumstances,

         20  it doesn't matter how genius somebody can be, there

         21  is no way that they can learn to drive the train in

         22  90 days. It is no way.

         23                 MR. WHEELER: No, Ma'am, that is not

         24  what I am saying.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, then tell
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          2  me.

          3                 MR. WHEELER: I am not saying that you

          4  can't teach a person to do it in 90 days. But what I

          5  am saying is you can't tell me the Transit Authority

          6  is trying to tell us that they can make in 90 days a

          7  person as qualified as I am after 24 years.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No, that I

          9  agree with you. But what I need to get to the bottom

         10  of is, if the Transit Authority, because personally

         11  driving a car I think is more simple than driving a

         12  train. I think. I have never driven a train,

         13  therefore, I don't know. But for somebody to learn

         14  to drive a car, it could take more than a year to

         15  really drive a car properly and adequately without

         16  hurting anybody on the street, et cetera, et cetera.

         17  They can turn the car on, they can make the car

         18  move, but they also can kill a lot of people in the

         19  process, and therefore what I am asking you is, I

         20  understand you have 25 years of experience and in no

         21  way somebody can compare your experience to that,

         22  but what I am asking you is, that the Transit

         23  Authority can really argue that in 90 days they can

         24  put somebody to drive trains?

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: They feel very
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          2  strongly about that. You are absolutely right. I am

          3  a perfect example; I waited 40 years to learn how to

          4  drive a car. Forty years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How long it

          6  took you to learn?

          7                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: This is the truth,

          8  but listen to this. I did one year in the yard, in

          9  non-passenger service as a train operator, to allow

         10  me to become acclimated with the equipment, to feel

         11  confident with the equipment, and the first day on

         12  the road I repeated my food. The first day on the

         13  road. After one year of training, I was so nervous

         14  and uncomfortable, I made it and did the jig at the

         15  end of the station when I made it to the end of the

         16  station.

         17                 It took me another four or five

         18  months to actually be comfortable operating that

         19  train every single day. So, we are saying to you,

         20  no, the Transit Authority cannot make a safe

         21  operating train operator in 90 days. And our

         22  disciplinary record in RTO proves it. Our members

         23  are having so many problems every single day

         24  operating that train, because first of all, they are

         25  not confident in operating. We have a system in
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          2  which anything can happen at any time and they are

          3  not experts, and in this job you must be an expert.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are they

          5  claiming that this 90 days is based on new

          6  technology? New technology in the trains, to allow

          7  people to do this better or easier?

          8                 MR. BROWN: Well, the technology that

          9  they are using now on the train, and they have just

         10  purchased, is way beyond what it has been, but the

         11  personnel factor, which Ms. Mack is alluding to, is

         12  that we are having so much discipline with new

         13  people who have just been trained, not with the

         14  people like Tom, but the people who have a year and

         15  less than a year, because the training we say is not

         16  adequate.

         17                 I was in the yard for 18 months. Now

         18  in the A division I think it is 57 days of training,

         19  and with the assimilator it is going to go down to

         20  30 or less. We are saying that safety-wise, we don't

         21  believe it would be prudent for them to train people

         22  at a length of time and for it to be safe. And also,

         23  if in fact they can train someone in that short of

         24  time and they become the greatest train operators in

         25  the world, there is still the problem of is it a
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          2  thing of color? Is this being done because the

          3  majority of this membership are people of color? And

          4  to me that is as paramount as the safety issue,

          5  because human rights, I mean we are in 1999 and we

          6  should have the same opportunity as everyone else.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Madam Chair, I

          8  just want to close with this. I think, and I don't

          9  think I am wrong, I think this is a safety issue,

         10  and I think that the Committee that watched safety

         11  in the City should be involved in this issue and

         12  call a hearing on this, because I don't see how New

         13  Yorkers are going to allow something like this to go

         14  through without being aware that the safety is going

         15  to be compromised. And I very strongly suggest that

         16  we, with safety, put this meeting together and

         17  publicize this meeting to invite the public to this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Not only is there a

         19  very critical safety issue that would certainly

         20  require Public Safety to come in on, but also I have

         21  been told by Counsel Transportation should certainly

         22  sit on this, as well.

         23                 So, I mean, we are talking about

         24  something that is of mega importance to every rider

         25  in New York City.
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          2                 My next questions are coming from

          3  Council Member Rodriguez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me

          5  just, the hearing today is about the exam being

          6  given to people from out of -- that are not I guess

          7  current employees. A lot of your comments were about

          8  the 90 days, is there anything that says, or do they

          9  imply or do they say that the only training that

         10  will go on in the future is really 90 days? Or did

         11  they say that they will do the 90-day training and

         12  then they will continue with the one year as it has

         13  been going? I am a little confused about that.

         14                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No, the training, as

         15  it stands, will be exactly what the new employees

         16  who are open competitive applicants, they will get

         17  the exact same training that is happening right now

         18  - either 90 days or 57, depending on what

         19  Department you come from, or what side you are

         20  coming from. It won't be expanded.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: But the TA

         22  in the past had the one-year rule?

         23                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And that

         25  was a rule or that was just something that they did,
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          2  and some people were a year, some people were a year

          3  and a half? How did that work?

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: It was supplement

          5  rule (sic), but the policy --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The policy?

          7                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And is it

          9  written down somewhere that the policy was a year,

         10  and is it written down that it is now going to be 90

         11  days; is that what I am understanding here?

         12                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No, about five years

         13  ago the Transit Authority, training and

         14  qualification determined that they could do the

         15  training in a smaller, in a shorter period of time,

         16  and implemented it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Five years

         18  ago.

         19                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, the 90

         21  day thing is five years old now?

         22                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct. And

         23  we have been fighting it since the very inception of

         24  it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, my
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          2  question then is, there are train operators out

          3  there today that got trained in 90 days?

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That is correct. We

          5  are talking about train operators who were either

          6  conductors or some other employee of the Transit

          7  Authority prior to being --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, I

          9  understand that, but they did it in 90 days?

         10                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And do we

         12  know about how many train operators that would be?

         13  Or what is the turnover, the annual turnover or

         14  something?

         15                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: I honestly don't know

         16  how many, but I can tell you that the discipline has

         17  risen since the implementation of the new training

         18  program.

         19                 So, five years ago when they

         20  implemented a 90-day -- what we call microwave train

         21  operator, the discipline --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Who calls

         23  them microwave train operators?

         24                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: We do.

         25                 MR. BORISH: Council Member, I want to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  make sure you understand something. When the term

          3  discipline is used here --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

          5                 MR. BORISH: The members don't mean

          6  discipline for some malevolent act, it is discipline

          7  for mistakes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

          9                 MR. BORISH: What we are trying to say

         10  is, we don't think the 90 days even for a

         11  promotional opportunity is such a good idea. Because

         12  what has happened in this five years, that the 90

         13  days has become more strictly a matter of policy, it

         14  is that discipline, i.e. members being disciplined

         15  for making mistakes has risen.

         16                 See, this is all one piece, you have

         17  got to understand this. They are making mistakes

         18  because they are not being trained well enough and

         19  then the TA says you are making mistakes and

         20  therefore we have to expand the pool. This is

         21  completely bizarre. That is what is happening.

         22                 And now we are talking about people

         23  making mistakes who already have a knowledge of the

         24  system. I mean, what is this? This is crazy. That is

         25  what we are trying to say.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The reason

          3  that I ask that question is because maybe, Madam

          4  Chair, we have to figure out a way to address that

          5  issue as well. This doesn't address that issue

          6  specifically. And you just brought it to my

          7  attention and I am sitting here going this is not

          8  here, I am not reading this. I just wanted to

          9  understand what it was you were saying and whether

         10  or not we have to -- well, clearly we have to have

         11  some oversight hearings and try to figure out how we

         12  address those concerns. Those are additional

         13  concerns above and beyond what we are dealing with

         14  today, that I think that is something we have to

         15  deal with.

         16                 Now, let me just ask some questions

         17  on what we are dealing with today.

         18                 Tell me about this exam. The exam has

         19  to do specifically -- because it seems a little

         20  strange to me that a high percentage of people that

         21  are trained in a certain field would fail any exam,

         22  that clearly leads to me to think that something is

         23  wrong with the exam that was given. It appears that

         24  way.

         25                 So, give me a little more details.
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          2  You gave an example before of slow, very slow,

          3  slowest and slower or whatever you want to call it,

          4  and so give me some more examples of some things

          5  that you think just didn't make sense that didn't

          6  have anything to do with operating a train.

          7                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Let me just say in

          8  general, to give an exam to someone who first of all

          9  doesn't even have a rule book. The number one rule

         10  is you must have a rule book and understand the

         11  rules and regulations of the Transit Authority.

         12  Ninety-five percent of the employees who took this

         13  test were never issued a rule book.

         14                 When my staff requested rule books

         15  from the Transit Authority, they were told there

         16  were no rule books. The second part of this problem

         17  for me around this test was that as Mr. Wheeler

         18  stated earlier, the test that was given to the

         19  employee was put together from a book, an R10 book,

         20  which has not been used for years. In 1988 I

         21  received that book. No other class after 1988 got

         22  that book.

         23                 So, why would you give a test from a

         24  book that you don't even issue anymore?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. Let
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          2  me just ask the question.

          3                 You are saying that many of the

          4  things in that test came from the rule book; is that

          5  what you are saying?

          6                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: From the rule book

          7  and the R10 book.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And the

          9  rule book is the rules and regulations by which you

         10  guys operate, supposed to operate?

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That is correct. And

         12  I found out, which was a horror for me, that RTO was

         13  the only department that had rule books; therefore,

         14  any employee coming from stations or a bus operator

         15  who wanted to be promoted to train operator, would

         16  not have a rule book. It would be the responsibility

         17  of the Transit Authority to now issue a rule book

         18  for that employee.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Is it

         20  different? Is it one rule book for all of MTA?

         21                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That is correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

         23  don't get one when you start working; is that what

         24  you are saying?

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: You are supposed to.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: But 95

          3  percent of the people don't get a rule book?

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So everyone

          6  is operating trains, people are doing all this work

          7  without knowing what the rules are; is that what you

          8  are saying?

          9                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No. What I am saying

         10  is, when we tried to give this class, this

         11  particular class --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, no, I

         13  am talking about, forget about the class. Let's talk

         14  about, there are thousands of people driving trains,

         15  there are thousands of people in token booths, there

         16  are thousands of people cleaning trains, and all of

         17  those people I am assuming at some point got some

         18  type of training when they started orientation.

         19  Again, that is when I assume they would get the rule

         20  book.

         21                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You are

         23  saying that 95 percent of the people did not get the

         24  rule book, therefore do not know what the rules are.

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.
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          2                 MR. BORISH: Let me just clarify that.

          3                 Once you come into what we refer to

          4  as RTO, which is Rapid Transit Operation, which is

          5  either a conductor or a tower operator or a train

          6  operator, you are issued a rule book in our

          7  department.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

          9                 MR. BORISH: We were speaking about

         10  the test because since most of the questions on the

         11  test, or a lot of it was interpreted from the rule

         12  book, if I was a bus operator, I was never given

         13  that rule book and never given the opportunity to

         14  get that rule book.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. So,

         16  you are saying that the rule book that they used was

         17  a rule book that is given to people that have

         18  already successfully been doing the job.

         19                 MR. BORISH: That's correct. Right. If

         20  they would have passed the test and got hired, they

         21  would have gotten the rule book.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         23                 MR. WHEELER:  Excuse me for cutting

         24  you off, but here is the point. If you are about to

         25  take the exam, the exam is based on that rule book,
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          2  you then need the rule book.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. Can

          4  you buy the rule book?

          5                 MR. WHEELER: No, you cannot.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Does the

          7  rule book --

          8                 MR. WHEELER: The Transit Authority's

          9  rule is each employee is to have in his possession,

         10  while he is on duty, the rules and regulations of

         11  the Authority.

         12                 Okay, now, you are coming from a

         13  Department where the rule book was never given to

         14  you. You are trying to get into our Department. The

         15  test that you are about to take is based in part on

         16  that book, but you don't have it.

         17                 So, Mr. Brown and I attempted to

         18  secure those books for you so that you can study

         19  from that book and then be prepared to take this

         20  exam.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         22                 MR. WHEELER: They wouldn't give us

         23  the book.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: But you

         25  have the book. You have one book?
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          2                 MR. WHEELER: And we copied it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Why didn't

          4  you guys just copy the book and give it to everybody

          5  that was taking the test?

          6                 MR. WHEELER: We did that.

          7                 MR. BROWN: When we would give

          8  assignments, now, remember, he has a book and I have

          9  a book, we tried unsuccessfully to get the books to

         10  give to the people who wanted to take the test. So,

         11  Mr. Wheeler, it was his idea, and it was a good

         12  idea, he said well let's copy our books. Well, it is

         13  about how many hundred pages, and on both sides

         14  there are words, so we had our job cut out for us.

         15                 So, anyway, we copied the book and we

         16  gave it out to the people, but, remember, we were on

         17  a time restraint because we had six weeks I think it

         18  was, also something called bulletins and I have them

         19  here. They had to know all bulletins issued for how

         20  many years? We had to go, track down all of the

         21  bulletins, Mr. Wheeler and myself, and make copies

         22  of them, from 1990 we went back all the way to 1998.

         23  We did all of this on our own. Remember, we are

         24  under a time restraint.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I am
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          2  assuming with the help of the union?

          3                 MR. BROWN: We are the union.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          5                 MR. BROWN: It fell on his and my

          6  shoulders.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Oh, okay.

          8                 MR. BROWN: That was time consuming.

          9  We gave the final examination, and I have some of

         10  the questions that we gave on the final examination,

         11  based on prior tests that were given by the Transit

         12  Authority. We gave 180 questions, and 85 percent of

         13  the people who took that exam, and it is well over

         14  600, passed. They got over 70 percent, over 85

         15  percent of the people.

         16                 The next day they took the

         17  examination that the Transit Authority gave and only

         18  32 out of almost 3,000 passed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And passed

         20  again, it is over 70 percent? That is what they

         21  consider passing?

         22                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's right.

         23                 MR. BROWN: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thirty-two

         25  people out of?
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          2                 MR. BROWN: Seventeen-hundred.

          3  Thirty-two people in 1,700 passed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Got over

          5  70?

          6                 MR. BROWN: Got over 70.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Did they

          8  curve it?

          9                 MR. WHEELER: And one other thing I

         10  would like to add to that, I sat on the board that

         11  went over the exam for the challenges. That is when

         12  you have a question that you felt had a dual answer.

         13  I sat on that board so I got to see the exam that

         14  was given to the 1,600 and some odd people who

         15  failed. And I am here to tell you that these

         16  supervisors who wrote it couldn't have passed it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Has the

         18  union tried to get a copy of the exam?

         19                 MR. WHEELER: Yes, we have. And that

         20  is almost an impossibility, to put your hands on an

         21  exam like that, I guess because they don't want it

         22  to get into the public in any way.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Have you

         24  guys tried to get it legally through the courts? Is

         25  that possible? Can you foil it? How long ago was the
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          2  exam?

          3                 MR. WHEELER: The exam was given about

          4  two years ago.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I would

          6  consider foiling it and just showing us how it --

          7  really it sounds like a ridiculous exam.

          8                 MR. BORISH: Council member, one of

          9  the reasons we are here, we know you have no

         10  authority over the TA and the exam process --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: We can try

         12  to get it.

         13                 MR. BORISH: But if you ask for the

         14  exam and they say no, now that is a whole different

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: We need to

         17  try to figure out what has happened that has caused

         18  this to happen. Apparently what you guys are saying

         19  is accurate, that they are trying to figure out ways

         20  to either preclude some people from either passing,

         21  taking or passing the exam, and that is something

         22  that we cannot allow to happen in this City. That is

         23  something I have been fighting for since I got

         24  elected, so I agree with that.

         25                 Let me ask one more question. The
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          2  educational requirements. Now, this is going on all

          3  over the City where they are raising the educational

          4  standards, and so I ask that question; what are the

          5  educational requirements now, (a)? What have they

          6  proposed to be educational requirements? And what

          7  are you people comfortable with as educational

          8  requirements?

          9                 MR. BORISH: Okay, under the old

         10  system when it was a promotional examination, the

         11  only requirement was that you needed one year in the

         12  Transit Authority in any title that was eligible in

         13  the Transit Authority.

         14                 This open competitive has a

         15  requirement of at least a high school diploma, and

         16  five years work experience, okay? Five years work

         17  experience. It doesn't state specifically, it just

         18  says general work experience. And interestingly

         19  enough, they will accept college in lieu of the work

         20  experience, okay? So, the issue again comes to light

         21  of, who are they trying to preclude from becoming a

         22  train operator, okay? Because someone with five

         23  years work experience, all right, is already in his

         24  mid-twenties and probably established, so who are

         25  they trying to preclude from taking this examination
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          2  is a question that needs to be asked.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

          4  you are saying now you don't even need a high school

          5  diploma, and you can be a train operator?

          6                 MR. BROWN: You don't need one now.

          7  But as Richie was saying --

          8                 MR. BORISH: In the open competitive

          9  you do.

         10                 MR. BROWN: In the open competitive

         11  you do now, but before you didn't. We didn't have to

         12  have one. We have one but we didn't have to. But up

         13  until this previous, the test that we are talking

         14  about now, now you have to have at least a high

         15  school diploma and five years work experience.

         16  Again, who are they trying to preclude because if

         17  someone in this City and unfortunately we have over

         18  a million people, I have been told, on public

         19  assistance, it precludes them from taking the test,

         20  because if they have been on public assistance for

         21  five years, six years, ten years, which

         22  unfortunately we all know the history, they can't

         23  even take the exam.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: As a union

         25  do you have a problem with the high school
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          2  requirement?

          3                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: We actually haven't

          4  argued high school requirement, but I can say to you

          5  that when I came into RTO as a train operator, most

          6  of my instructors did not have high school diplomas.

          7  In fact, they were the best motormen I have ever

          8  known. These men worked 35 years as train operators,

          9  never had an incident, and knew more than any

         10  instructor in the Transit Authority.

         11                 So, we don't believe that the high

         12  school diploma makes you a train operator. Obviously

         13  having a high school diploma means you have a

         14  better, as they say, ability to have reading

         15  comprehension. This job does involve reading and the

         16  knowledge, having the ability to understand systems,

         17  signs, tracks, those kinds of things. So, we never

         18  actually argued the high school diploma. That hasn't

         19  been a problem for us, and I don't think it will be

         20  in the future.

         21                 But we do emphatically have a problem

         22  with trying to put a new criteria of college,

         23  because college will obviously negate people of

         24  color, as the President said not too long ago, from

         25  having the ability to get employment with the
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          2  Transit Authority.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 Madam Chair, I think what we need to

          6  look at, the way I see this is they gave an exam

          7  that apparently was intended to make sure that

          8  people failed, they did it so that they can achieve

          9  the goals that they wanted to achieve, and from my

         10  opinion that is all we have to look at. We have to

         11  get a copy of that exam. You have to compare that

         12  exam with the previous exams, and see how it

         13  relates, at least on the level of how competitive it

         14  would be had how relative it is to being a train

         15  operator. I think that is extremely important.

         16                 I think it is also extremely

         17  important that we determine whether or not it was

         18  fair what they did, and if it wasn't fair, what

         19  their intentions were for doing that.

         20                 I think that is really, from my

         21  opinion, what we need to look at.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you.

         24                 Thank you. Everything has been duly

         25  noted, and we are just on a roll here. It gets
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          2  scarier as we move on.

          3                 I want to know, please tell me the

          4  starting salary of a train operator, and what is the

          5  average salary, including overtime compensation

          6  after five years, after ten years on the job, after

          7  15 and after 20 years on the job.

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Well, train

          9  operator's base salary is about $42,000. I believe

         10  the --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: The cap?

         12                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Forty-two thousand,

         13  yes. Starting. And it goes to about $45,000 base.

         14  That is after one year.

         15                 Obviously each individual determines

         16  whether or not they want to work overtime or not,

         17  and that would determine how much money you would

         18  make.

         19                 But even in that situation, because

         20  of what is happening in RTO, the change of who is

         21  the train operator, there have been caps placed to

         22  disallow you to make a certain amount of money.

         23  There are train operators that make off very well.

         24  They work. We call it blood money. They work for it.

         25  They are not given that money. But it is a good

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  living. It is a lot of work, it is a lot of stress.

          3  It involves a lot of hours away from your home and

          4  from your family. As a single mother at one time I

          5  spent a lot of hours working on that train, and it

          6  was a lot of stress, because every time we take the

          7  train there is an opportunity for an incident, and

          8  an incident could be very small, but when you have a

          9  human life involved it could be very big.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: You forgot to

         11  mention it can be very claustrophobic too. I just

         12  need a little levity. As I said, it is really

         13  mind-boggling. I would like to know the turnover.

         14  And I would have to ask what are the current

         15  percentages of conductors and track workers and

         16  token booth and employees that are currently in the

         17  promotional title who take the train operator exams

         18  and ultimately become train operators. And of the --

         19  we will jump back to the salary of the train

         20  operators that we do have and are making -- how long

         21  do they stay? What is the turnover on that

         22  percentage?

         23                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Well, of late the

         24  turnover has been pretty great, simply because of

         25  the discipline alone. It is difficult to become a
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          2  train operator and even more difficult to stay a

          3  train operator it seems.

          4                 Nonetheless, our conductors and

          5  station cleaners have other options. You can be

          6  promoted to supervision or you can be promoted to

          7  train operator. Most members of Local 100 will

          8  prefer to stay in Local 100, therefore, they opt for

          9  the train operator title.

         10                 But as we stated earlier, it is a

         11  problem for you. I mean, it is a balance, you have

         12  to weigh whether you want to go into a title that

         13  has so much pressure around just working every day,

         14  versus going into another title that may be in the

         15  corner somewhere where nobody notices you. Because a

         16  train operator obviously is a title where you are in

         17  the public eye. Any incident could be made newspaper

         18  worthy. So, you have to look at those things and

         19  that causes people to kind of lay back and not want

         20  to become a train operator. But for those who want

         21  to become a train operator, something we didn't talk

         22  about earlier, they have two out of three, as you

         23  know, civil service, where the Transit Authority

         24  looks at your record and determines whether or not

         25  you are viable to be promoted.
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          2                 We believe they have created their

          3  own monster because of the criteria they have laid

          4  down around how they promote people. And we are

          5  telling you, and I have told them, on no uncertain

          6  terms, if they would just be a little bit more

          7  lenient around how they determine who could be

          8  promoted to a train operator, they would not have

          9  the problems they have. Because one of the arguments

         10  they gave was that they don't have enough bodies for

         11  the next millennium, in terms of train operator.

         12  They need to have additional bodies.

         13                 We believe that if they didn't have

         14  so much discipline, if they didn't have these

         15  ridiculous guidelines as to who can be promoted,

         16  they would have viable candidates to be train

         17  operators within their own ranks.

         18                 They need to lay back a little bit

         19  and look at employees who have given ten years of

         20  service, who may now want to be promoted and make

         21  more money for their families.

         22                 They need to look at the fact that if

         23  you give additional training to your conductors and

         24  to your cleaners and your token booth clerks, that

         25  you will have a candidate and an employee that not
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          2  only loves their job, but does their job to the best

          3  of their ability.

          4                 These are the things we say, we are

          5  talking about quality of life issues. Simply look at

          6  managing as a way of having a good relationship with

          7  your employee and our members. They want to come to

          8  work so that they love what they are doing. So that

          9  anyone who loves what they are doing does a better

         10  job of doing it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         12  Espada, please.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you.

         14                 You are going to have to excuse me,

         15  and I think some of us, as we ask so many background

         16  questions, but I think we are trying to get a real

         17  perspective on this and it has changed several

         18  times. The paper that I started out with had a lot

         19  of different questions that have now been scratched

         20  out as we have been getting a little more background

         21  on what exactly it is that we are talking about.

         22                 What are all of the different types

         23  of positions currently that can apply to take the

         24  conductor's exam?

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The train operator?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: The train

          3  operator, I am sorry.

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The conductor, the

          5  cleaner --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: When you say

          7  the cleaner, talk a little bit more about that.

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: TA porter, which is

          9  somebody who sweeps, and you also have the cleaner

         10  who cleans the subway system, you have two kinds of

         11  cleaners, okay? One comes out of the Station

         12  Department, and one comes out of Car Equipment

         13  Department. So you have two kinds of cleaners.

         14                 Station clerks, who are the people

         15  who give the tokens. Bus operators. Trackmen, and

         16  signal maintainers. So we have about six titles that

         17  can be promoted to train operator.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And a pretty

         19  large diversity amongst the groups that can take it

         20  as well, right?

         21                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Diversity in terms of

         22  what?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Diversity in

         24  terms of skills and knowledge of what exactly the

         25  trains --
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          2                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Also, are

          4  there normally -- I have heard, and I presume by

          5  hearing all of you speak, there is a time difference

          6  between the time when you started becoming -- I am

          7  sorry, what is the term again, train operator?

          8                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Train operator.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And whatever

         10  else. So, all of you took different kinds of tests?

         11  Or most of you -- there are different tests that you

         12  took to become train operators or no?

         13                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: We took tests at

         14  different times of our careers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And therefore

         16  different?

         17                 MS. SCOTT-MACK each test was similar.

         18  Each test had similar questions. In fact, when we

         19  talked it always had maybe five or six of the same

         20  questions. It came from the same pool of I guess

         21  their materials. That was prior to five years ago.

         22  Five years ago things started to change in terms of

         23  training and how they determine who will be a train

         24  operator.

         25                 But as Mr. Wheeler said --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: So as of five

          3  years ago, this test has been semi-unpredictable?

          4                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No, the test has been

          5  basically the same. The training, I said, the

          6  training things have changed. But as Mr. Wheeler

          7  stated earlier, when he became a motorman, Ron Brown

          8  became a motorman, Richard Borish became a motorman,

          9  Corine Mack became a motorman, yes, I am a woman but

         10  I felt proud of that title motorman, I never had a

         11  problem with it, and what they said was they were

         12  going to change the title from motorman to train

         13  operator because of the gender issue. That is what

         14  they said. We didn't know they were thinking about

         15  doing what they are doing now, one-person train

         16  operation.

         17                 MR. BORISH: And just to clarify, the

         18  answer to your question is yes, this last -- that

         19  test that 32 people passed, was definitely different

         20  from the test that we took.

         21                 And just one thing on what Corine was

         22  saying about the two out of three, they had the

         23  audacity to turn down 12 of the 33 people that

         24  passed that test.

         25                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's right.
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          2                 MR. BORISH: Okay? They had the

          3  audacity. They should have made them superintendents

          4  is what they should have done, but they decided to

          5  pass them over.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: But my

          7  question was, this time we are saying it was

          8  absolutely different, but there are normally

          9  differences every year, every two years, three

         10  years, four years, five years, we don't know?

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: The questions may be

         12  different but it is from the same materials.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: So all of you

         14  got the same study guide, although it may have been

         15  in a different order or worded differently or

         16  whatever, but all of you got the same study book,

         17  this was the first time that had changed?

         18                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Okay.

         20                 And under the new proposed group of

         21  folks that would be taking the test, would they then

         22  hence become members of your local or no?

         23                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes, they already

         24  are.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: No, the new
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          2  people that would be taking it --

          3                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Open competitive.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: They would

          5  become members?

          6                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And then my

          8  last question is, are there absolutely no

          9  qualifications for a person that would be taking the

         10  test and the new?

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: In terms of the test

         12  that they are open competitive --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: The one that

         14  they are offering starting January, are there

         15  absolutely no qualifications?

         16                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No other

         17  qualifications, except for the educational

         18  background change. Five years work experience, I

         19  mean I could be doing God knows what. There has not

         20  been a specific determination as to what kind of

         21  work you must be doing? It simply says work

         22  experience. That is all it says.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: So, anybody in

         24  the world who graduated from -- I mean, there is no

         25  language requirement, no nothing, if anybody in the
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          2  world graduated from a high school somewhere, and

          3  had worked for five years, and somebody said before

          4  welfare, I mean welfare recipients or working, they

          5  are in the streets cleaning streets, so anybody in

          6  the entire world that graduated from high school

          7  under any language or whatever could take the test,

          8  as far as we know, under the new proposal?

          9                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I have a question

         12  that I certainly want to have clarification on.

         13                 I know there must be -- well, as we

         14  have certain criteria, there has to be a health

         15  criteria, does there not? Is that not a fact?

         16                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes, there is.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Are there dole,

         18  random dole tests? Do you know what a dole test is?

         19                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: No, I am not aware.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: A drug test where

         21  they collect your urine and stuff like that?

         22                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: To see if you are

         24  using any kind of drugs. So that is a requirement

         25  and it still continues to be, and do they have that
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          2  requirement prior to appointments or to promotional?

          3                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Yes.

          4                 MR. BORISH: I was just going to say

          5  yes. It is part of the pre-employment screening, and

          6  the random drug testing, which is part of the FTA

          7  regulations, we are subject to as train operators

          8  and conductors and you can be tested any time your

          9  name gets picked out of the hat.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: College or not,

         11  right?

         12                 MR. BORISH: College or not, it

         13  doesn't matter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay. Thank you.

         15                 Are there any other comments that you

         16  would like for us to know? And I hope that it is

         17  clear to you we do intend to pursue this with other

         18  committees of this City Council. We think it is a

         19  critical issue, or enough of a critical issue to

         20  necessitate other hearings. We invite you to come

         21  back to shock us with your testimony again, because

         22  I think New York City needs to know what the heck is

         23  happening with transit, and maybe the Transit

         24  Authority Board doesn't know some of what is going

         25  on.
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          2                 I hope they can at least say we

          3  didn't know, and if they say that then they are in a

          4  lot of trouble anyway. So, thank you.

          5                 I am going to close this hearing now.

          6  I thank you again for coming. Thank you, Council

          7  Members. As you see, you had a very active and

          8  interested committee.

          9                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: If I may?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes.

         11                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: I just want to remind

         12  the panel that this test is being given on January

         13  the 8th.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We understand the

         15  time is of the essence. I want to again repeat the

         16  schedule. The test is scheduled for January 8th, and

         17  there are a host of very serious and critical,

         18  crucial questions, okay?

         19                 Thank you very much. Thank you,

         20  Counsel Carl Smith. Members, thank you.

         21                 MS. SCOTT-MACK: Thank you.

         22                 MR. BORISH: Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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